# WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

# Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 INB at 5.30 pm on Wednesday, 5 February 2025

# **PRESENT**

Councillors: Andrew Beaney (Chair), Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), Thomas Ashby, Mike Baggaley, David Jackson, Julian Cooper, Genny Early, Nick Leverton, Dan Levy, Paul Marsh, Stuart McCarroll, Michele Mead, Elizabeth Poskitt, Carl Rylett, Sandra Simpson, Ruth Smith, Alistair Wray, Liam Walker and Alex Wilson

Officers: Madhu Richards (Director of Finance), Andrew Brown (Head of Democratic and Electoral Services) and Georgina Dyer (Chief Accountant)

Other Councillors in attendance: Councillor Alaric Smith, Executive Member for Finance

# 92 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments

Apologies were noted from Councillors Andrew Lyon, Mark Walker, Liz Leffman, Natalie King, Steve Cosier and Adam Clements.

Councillor David Jackson substituted for Councillor Adam Clements.

#### 93 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

# 94 Minutes of Previous Meeting

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2025. Councillor Alistair Wray noted that his name needed correcting under apologies for absence.

Councillor Liam Walker proposed that the minutes be approved subject to the minor amendment. This proposal was seconded by Councillor Carl Rylett, put to the vote and agreed by the Committee.

Resolved: The Committee approved the minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2025.

# 95 Report back on recommendations

The Executive's response to the Committee's recommendation on the target for temporary accommodation bedspaces was noted.

#### 96 Chair's announcements

The Chair asked members of the Committee to fill in a survey on the effectiveness of the overview and scrutiny function.

# 97 Participation of the Public

There was no public participation.

## 98 Update on Budget 2025 – 2026

Councillor Alaric Smith, Executive Member for Finance, introduced the update on the Budget for 2025 – 2026 which would be considered by the Executive on 12 February 2025 and then full Council on 26 February 2025. The Executive Member highlighted that:

### Overview and Scrutiny Committee

#### 05/February2025

- The projected budget surplus of £91,280 in 2025/26 was welcome but the picture became more difficult through the duration of the medium term financial strategy.
- The outcome and impact of the local government funding review remained uncertain but was expected to result in a significant reduction in the Council's funding.
- There was also uncertainty around the cost of the next leisure contract.
- Changes to recycling contracts were benefiting the Council by £420k overall.
- The Council Tax second homes premium was expected to increase income by £219k.
- Fees and charges income was expected to increase by £138k compared to the draft budget presented to the Executive in December.
- Growth items were included in the budget to enable the Council to provide better services going forwards.

## The Committee asked questions and noted that:

- Fees and charges, including for green waste, had been agreed by the Executive on 15 January 2025.
- While there was a small in-year overspend on the cost of services in 2024/25, this was expected to be balanced by Business Rates income and the final outturn for 2024/25 was expected to be a surplus.
- The Council had a range of robust internal controls in place but there were some factors that could affect the Council's finances that were beyond the Council's control.
- There was a looming financial gap in year 2 which the Council was seeking to mitigate, for example by treating grant funding as one-off income.
- There would be a rebasing of the budget for Publica to ensure that there would be a more realistic spread of the service costs between the three partner councils.
- The Council would receive £117k from the government towards the cost of increased Employer National Insurance Contributions. This sum had very recently been confirmed and officers would need to work out the Council's net position. The final funding settlement was otherwise unchanged.
- The Council, along with other shire districts, was expecting a significant reduction in Business Rates income. Some form of phasing was likely to be applied but this was still uncertain.
- £100k was provided over two years for legal services related to the next leisure contract.
- Extended Producer Responsibility funding of £2.3m would be received in quarter 3 of 2025/26 and had been treated as one-off funding in the budget. More information about the terms of this funding was expected from the Government nearer the time.
- The target for Development Management fee income had been reduced by £150k to provide a more realistic target. Should there be major planning applications that come through then there may be a positive variance against this target.

## Overview and Scrutiny Committee

#### 05/February2025

- As part of the budget setting process the finance team had spoken to all services and asked them to submit any growth requests.
- The budget consultation had recently closed and responses would be considered by officers. Next year officers wouldn't include a "don't know" option on the survey.

Officers agreed to produce the following in response to comments from the Committee:

- An updated Annex C with equivalent axes in the graphs showing the Council's core spending power.
- An updated Annex G with correct references to precepting authorities.

Councillor Alex Wilson proposed that the Committee recommend to the Executive that consider the inclusion of a second Fly Tipping Officer post as an additional growth item within the budget. The proposal was seconded by Councillor Nick Leverton. The recommendation was put to the vote and was agreed by the Committee.

The Committee resolved to submit one recommendation to the Executive on 12 February 2025:

I. That consideration is given to the case for creating a second Fly Tipping Officer (Environment Support Officer) post.

# 99 Committee Work Programme

The Committee noted that the Climate Change Strategy had slipped on the Executive programme from March to July and that Publica Transition Phase 2 had been added for March. The Committee noted the change and agreed to include the Publica Transition item on the agenda for the March Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

The Chair encouraged Members to submit questions on the service performance report and the finance performance report in advance of the next meeting.

The Chair noted that the Knights Court Business Case item was not on Work Programme currently because the timing was uncertain but it remained on the radar.

#### 100 Executive Work Programme

The Committee noted that the papers for the 12 February 2025 Executive meeting had already been published.

#### 101 Matters Exempt from Publication

The Committee did not consider the exclusion of the press and public.

### 102 Annex J - Proposed Fees and Charges for Trade Waste (Exempt Annex)

This item was not considered in private session.

The Meeting closed at 6.25 pm